
Case 1:09-cr-00169-AWI Document 1 Filed 05/07/09 Page 1of3 . 

l LAWRENCE G. BROWN 
Acting United States Attorney 

2 BRIAN W. ENOS 
Assistant United States Attorney 

3 United States Courthouse 
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Telephone: (559) 497-4000 

5 Facsimile: (559) 497-4099 

6 

7 

8· 

9 

UNITED.STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTEnN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

10 
0 0 1 6 9 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) CR. No. t 0 9 CR 

11 ) 
Plaintiff, ) VIOLATIONS: 18 u.s.c. 

-12 ) § 2252(a) (2) - Receipt or 
) Distribution of Material 

13 v. ) Involving the sexual 
) Exploitation of Minors; 18 

14 ) u.s.c.' § 2252 (a) (4) (B) -
RAFF I EL NORWOOD, ) Possession of Material 

15 ) Involving the sexual 
Defendant. ) Exploitation of Minors; 18 

16 ) u.s.c. § 2253 - Forfeiture 

17 

18 

AWi 

19 COUNT ONE: [18 U.S.C. § 2252(a) (2) - Receipt or Distribution of 
Material Involving the Sexual Exploitation of Minors] 

20 

21 The Grand Jury charges TH A.T: 

22 RAFFIEL NORWOOD, 

23 defendant herein, beginning on an unknown date no later than 

24 approximately May 3, 2008 and continuing through approximately 

25 April 15, 2009, in Kern County, within the State and Eastern 

26 District of California, and elsewhere did knowingly receive.and 

27 distribute any visual depiction that had been mailed, shipped, or 

28 transported in interstate or foreign commerce, or which contained 

I 



Case 1:09-cr-00169-AWI Document 1 Filed 05107109 Page 2 of 3 

1 materials that had been so mailed, shipped, or transported, and 

2 the producing of the depiction involved a minor engaging in 

3 sexually explicit c9nduct and was of such conduct, specifically:. 

4 the defendant, using a computer and modem, received or 

5 distributed via the internet and interstate commerce, at least 

6 one visual depiction, which the defendant then knew, was a visual 

7 depiction, the producing of which involved the use of a minor 

8 engaged in sexually explicit conduct and was of such conduct as 

9 defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256, all in 

10 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252(a) (2). 

11 

12 COUNT TWO: 

13 

[18 u.s.c. § 22s2(a) (4) (B) - Possession of Material 
Involving the Sexual Exploitation of Minors] 

14 The Grand Jury further charges: THAT 

15 RAFFIEL NORWOOD, 

16 defendant herein, on or about. April 15, 2009, in Kern County, 

17 within the .State and Eastern District of California, and 

18 elsewhere did knowingly possess one or more matters which 

19 contained any visual depiction that had been mailed, shipped, or 

20 transported in interstate or foreign .commerce, or which was 

21 produced using materials which had been so mailed, shipped, or 

22 transported, the producing of which involved a minor engaging in 

23 sexually explicit conduct and the depiction was of such conduct, 

.24 specifically: the_ defendant possessed on an internal hard disc 

25 drive of a computer, one or more compact discs and .a thumb drive 

26 at least one image file which contained a v_isual depiction, the 

27 producing of which involved the use of a minor engaged in 

28 sexually explicit conduct, and was of such conduct, as defined in 

2 
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1 Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256, and which had 

2 traveled in interstate commerce all in violation of Title 18, 

3 United States Code, Section 2252(a) (4) (B). 

4 COUNT THREE: [18 U.S.C. § 2253 - Forfeiture] 

5 The Grand Jury further charges: THAT 

6 RAFFIEL NORWOOD, 

7 defendant herein, upon conviction for violating 18 U.S.C. § · 

8 2252(a) (2) as alleged·in Count One, or 18 u.s.C. § 

9 2252(a) (4) (B}, as alleged in Count Two above, shall forfeit to 

l·o the united States his interest in any and all matters which 

11 contain visual depictions produced, transported, shipped or 

12 received in violation thereof; any property constituting or 

13 traceable to gross profits or other proceeds the defendant 

14 obtained directly or indirectly as a result of the stated 

15 violations; and any and all property used or intended to be used 

16 in any manner or part to commit and to promot·e the commission of 

17 the aforementioned violations, including but not limited to the 

18 following items: 

19 Toshiba Laptop Computer, Model: Ml05-S3041, Serial No. 
76209672K 

20 
all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253. 

21 

22 A TRUE BILL. 

23 Isl Siqnature on file·wfAas"Jt. 

FOREPERSON 
24 

LAWRENCE G. BROWN 
25 Acting United States Attorney 

2 6 Mark E. Cullers 
By~~~~~~~~.,;c.-~-

2 7 MARK E. CULLERS 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

28 Chief, Fresno Office 

3 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR1Ff le 
Eastern District of California ;. · · 

r MAY 0720 9. 
Cl!: "·' ... Criminal Division 

EASTE~bVs%RbS{Rtcr o 
- OF·CAl ORNIA 

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
vs, 

RAFFIEL NORWOOD 

t 0 9 CR 0 0 1 6 9 
VIOLATION(S): I 8 U.S.C. § 2252(a)(2) - RECEIPT OR 

DISTRIBUTION OF MATERIAL INVOLVING THE SEXUAL 
EXPLOITATION OF MINORS; 18 U.S.C. § 2252(a)(4)(B) -

POSSESSION OF MATERIAL INVOLVING THE SEXUAL 
EXPLOITATION OF MINORS; 18 U.S.C. § 2253 - FORFEITURE 

~::~i: _______________ ----!sJ _____ -----
k:eman. 

' --J''fli.. 
is -----/-------day 

___ . A.o.20L'f_ __ 

Clerk. 

GPO 863 525 

-
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DEFENDAN:r INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT 

By COMPlAINT INFORMATION x INDICTMENT 

OFFENSE CHARGED 
PLEASE SEE INDICTMENT 

Place of Offense 

.lL 

U.S.C. Citation 

Petty 

Minor 

Misde~ 

meanor 

Felony 

Please see Indictment 

Kern County 

PROCEEDING 

Name of Complainant Agency, or Person (&Title, if any) 

I SA PRADO/ICE 

D this person is awaiting trial in another Federal or State Court, 
give name of court. 

D this person/proceeding ls transferred from another district 
per (circle one) FRCrP 20, 21, or 40. Show District 

D this is a reprosecution of charges 
previously dismissed which were 
dismissed on motion of: 

D U.S. Att'y D Defense 

D this prosecution relates tO a pending 
case involving this same defendant 

D prior proceeding or appearance(s} 
before U.S. Magistrate regarding 
this defendant were recorded under 

Name and Office of Person 
Furnishing information on 

THIS FORM I MARIA G. ROBLES 

Name of Asst. U.S. 

I BRIAN 

x 

W. ENOS 

U.S. 
Att'y 

· SHOW 

DOCKET NO. 

MAGISTRATE 
CASE NO. 

other 
u.s. 

Name of Oistricl Court, andfor Judge Magistrate Location (city) 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 
FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

.. 
DEFENDANT -- U.S. vs. 

I RAFFIEL NORWOOD 

Address { 

I 
1: O 9 CR 0 0 1 6 9 

Birth 
D~le 

{Optional unless a juvenille) 

x 

DEFENDANT 

IS NOT IN CUSTODY 

Male 

Female 

AWi 

Allen 

(if applicable) 

~ Has not been arrested, pending outcome this 
proceeding 

Hao 

if not de_tained give date any prior summons 
was_ served on above char~es 

D Is a Fugivtive --------

0 Is on Bail or Realease from (show District) 

IS IN CUSTODY 

[=:J Fed' D state § On this charge 

On another 

Awaiting trial on other charges 
If answer to (6) ia "Yes", show name of 

If 
detainer Yes ''Yesu 
been give 

date 
No 

DA1'E OF Mo. Day Year 
ARREST • 

Or ... if arresting Agency & Warrant were not 
Federal 

DATE TRANSFERRED 
TO U.S. CUSTODY 

Mo. Day Year 

D This report amends AO 257 previously submitted 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS 

PENALTIES! See Indictment DEFN. BJlIL ST~TUS: Issue NO Bail warrant 
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DEFENDANT: 

VIOLATION: 

PENALTY: 

VIOLATION: 

PENALTY: . 

PENALTY SLIP 

RAFFIEL NORWOOD 

18 u.s.c. § 2252 (a) (2) -
Receipt or Distribution of Material 
Involving the Sexual Exploitation 
Of Minors 

20 years imprisonment 
Not more than $250,000 fine 

18 U.S.C. § 2252(a} (4) (B} -
Possession of Material Involving 
The Sexual Exploitation of Minors 

10 years imprisonment 
Not more than $250,000 fine 
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1 LAWRENCE G. BROWN 
Acting United States Attorney 

2 BRIAN W. ENOS 
Assistant United States Attorney 

3 United States Courthouse 
2500 Tulare Street, Suite 4401 

4 Fresno, California 93721 
Telephone: (559) 497-4000 

5 Facsimile: (559) 497-4099 

6 

7 

8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

9 EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

Case No. 1:09-CR-00169 AWI 

MEMORANDUM OF PLEA AGREEMENT 
UNDER RULE ll(c) OF THE FEDERAL 
RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 

Date: TBD 
Time: TBD 
Ctrm: 2 · 
Hon. Anthony W. Ishii 

17 Pursuant to Rule ll(c) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

18 Procedure, plaintiff United States of America, by and through 

19 Lawrence G. Brown, the United States Attorney for the Eastern 

20 District of California, and Assistant United States Attorney 

21 Brian W. Enos, has agreed with defendant Raffiel Norwood, and his 

22 attorneys, Kyle J. Humphrey and Jared M. Thompson, Esq., as 

23 follows: 

24 1. Charges. 

25 The defendant acknowledges that he has been charged in an 

26 indictment as follows: 

27 

28 

1 
·MEMORANDUM OE' PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RULE ll(C) 

OE' THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 One Count of Receipt or Distribution of Material Involving 

2 the Sexual Exploitation of Minors, in violation of Title 18, 

3 United States Code, section 2252(a) (2) {Count One); and 

4 One Count of Possession of Material Involving The Sexual 

5 Exploitation of Minors, in violation of Title 18, United States 

6 Code, Section 2252 (a) (4) (B) (Count Two). 

7 The defendant will plead guilty to Count Two of the 

8 indictment. 

9 2. Nature. Elements and Possible Defenses. 

10 The defendant has read the charges against him contained in 

11 the indictment, and the charges have been fully explained to him 

12 by his attorney. Further, the defendant fully understands the 

13 nature and elements of the crime charged in Count Two of the 

14 indictment to which he is pleading guilty, together with the 

15. possible defenses thereto, and he has discussed them with his 

16 attorney. 

17 The elements of the crime of Possession of Material 

1$ Involving the Sexual Exploitation of Minors, as alleged in Count 

19 Two of the indictment, are as follows: 

20 First: The defendant knowingly possessed 
visual depictions that had been shipped or 

21 transported in interstate or foreign commerce 
by any means including a computer; 

22 

23 

24 

Second, The producing of any such visual depiction 
involved the use of one or more real minors engaged in 
sexually explicit conduct and such visual depiction was 
of such conduct; and 

25 Third, the defendant had knowledge that the visual 
depiction involved the use of one or more real minors 

26 engaged in sexually explicit conduct. 

27 Ill 

28 Ill 

2 
MEMORANDUM OF PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RULE ll(C) 

OF THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRrMlNAL PROCEDURE 
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1 3. Agreements by the Defendant. 

2 (a) Defendant agrees that this plea agreement shall be filed 

3 with the court and become a part of the record of the case. 

4 (b) Defendant agrees to enter a plea of guilty to Count Two 

5 of the indictment, which charges him with Possession of Material 

6 Involving the Sexual Exploitation of Minors, in violation of 

7 Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252(a) (4) (B). 

8 (c) The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States 

9 Code, Section 3742 affords a defendant the right to appeal any 

10 sentence imposed. Acknowledging this, the defendant knowingly 

11 and voluntarily waives his Constitutional and statutory rights to 

12 appeal his plea, conviction, and sentence. This waiver of appeal 

13 includes, but is not limited to, an express waiver of defendant's 

14 rights to appeal his plea, conviction, and sentence on any 

15 ground, including any appeal right conferred by 18 U.S.C. § 3742 

16 or otherwise. The defendant further agrees not to contest his 

17 plea, conviction, or sentence in any post-conviction proceeding, 

18 including but not limited to a proceeding under 28 u.s.c. § 2255 

19 or § 2241. 

20 (d) The defendant further acknowledges that his plea of 

21 guilty is voluntary and that no force, threats, promises or 

22 representations have been made to anybody, nor agreement reached, 

23 other than those set forth expressly in this agreement, to induce 

24 the defendant to plead guilty. 

25 (e) The defendant agrees to waive all rights under the 

26 ''Hyde Amendment,n Section 617, P.L. 105-119 (Nov. 26, 1997), to 

27 recover attorney's fees or other litigation expenses in 

28 connection with the investigation and prosecution of all charges 

3 
MEMORAmllJM OF PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RULE 11(C) 

OF THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 in the above-captioned matter and of any related allegations 

2 (including without limitation any charges to be dismissed 

3 pursuant to this Agreement and any charges previously dismissed). 

4 (f) The defendant agrees that the sentencing court will 

5 .consult the United States Sentencing Commissions Guidelines (2008 

6 edition) when sentencing the defendant in this case. 

7 (g) Defendant acknowledges that the sentencing court will 

B consult the United States Sentencing Guidelines ("USSG") and will 

9 look to them in determining a reasonable sentence. Defendant 

10 further agrees that his conduct is governed by USSG Section 

11 2G2.2, and that the base offense level for his crime is eighteen 

12 (18). 

13 {h) The defendant agrees that the material he possessed 

14 involved sexually explicit images of prepubescent minors and/or 

15 children under the age of twelve (12) years, and this will 

16 increase his offense level by two (2) levels under USSG § 

17 2G2.2{b) (2). 

18 (i) The defendant agrees that he possessed images depicting 

19 minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct resulted from the 

20 defendant's use of a computer, and this will increase his offense 

21 level by two (2) levels under USSG § 2G2.2(b) (6). 

22 (j) The defendant agrees that he possessed material that 

23 portrays sadistic or masochistic conduct or other depictions of 

24 violence, and this will increase his offense level by four (4) 

25 levels under USSG § 2G2.2(b) (4). 

26 (k) The defendant agrees that the offense involved at least 

27 150 images of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct, and 

28 

4 
WMOJU\lfO!JM OF PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RULE 11 (C) 

OP THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 this will increase his offense level by three (3) levels under 

2 USSG § 2G2.2(b) (7) (D). 

3 (1) The defendant agrees that his total offense level, 

4 after a reduction of three (3) levels for acceptance of 

5 responsibility, will he twenty-six (26). This will produce a 

6 sentencing range, assuming he is in Criminal History Category I, 

7 of 63-78 months. 

8 (m) The defendant agrees not to move, either directly or 

9 indirectly through others, for a downward departure, variance or 

10 reduction of his sentence beyond any departure, variance or 

11 reduction agreed to by the government in Section 4 of this plea 

12 agreement. The defendant understands and agrees that this 

13 agreement by him includes, but is not limited to, not moving for 

14 a downward departure, variance or reduction of his offense level, 

15 criminal history category, or criminal history points as defined 

16 by the United states Sentencing Guidelines. Furthermore, 

17 defendant shall not argue, by way of reference to factors under 

18 18 U.S.C. § 3553, for a term of imprisonment less than the 

19 .applicable guideline sentence. In fact, both parties stipulate 

20 and agree not to move for, or argue in support of, any departure 

21 from the sentencing guidelines. Both parties instead agree and 

22 stipulate that the guideline sentence is a "reasonable sentence" 

23 pursuant to the facts in this case. 

24 (n) The defendant agrees that one component of an 

25 overall reasonable sentence will be a term of supervised release 

26 of 180 months (15 years). 

27 (o) If the defendant's conviction on the count to which he 

28 is pleading is ever vacated at the defendant's request, or his 

5 
MEMORANDUM OF PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RULE ll(C) 

OF THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 sentence is ever reduced at his request, the government shall 

2 have the right (1) to prosecute the defendant on any of the 

3 counts to which he pleaded guilty, (2) to reinstate any counts 

4 that may be dismissed under this agreement, and (3) to file any 

5 new charges that would otherwise be barred by this agreement. 

6 The decision to pursue any or all of these options is solely in 

7 the discretion of the United States Attorney's Office. By 

8 signing this agreement, the defendant agrees to waive any 

9 objections, motions, and defenses he might have to the 

10 government's decision, including Double Jeopardy. In particular, 

11 he agrees not to raise any objections based on the passage of 

12 time with respect to such counts including, but not limited to, 

13 any statutes of limitation or any objections based on the Speedy 

14 Trial Act or the Speedy Trial Clause of the Sixth Amendment. 

15 (p) The defendant agrees that his release pending 

16 sentencing is restricted by 18 u.s.c. § 3143(a), and he agrees 

17 that he will be remanded into custody upon entry of his guilty 

18 plea. 

19 (q) The defendant acknowledges that he has been advised, 

20 and he understands, that under the Sex Offender Registration and 

21 Notification Act, a federal law, that he must register and keep 

22 his registration current in each of the following jurisdictions: 

23 where he resides, where he is an employee, and where he is a 

24 student. He understands that the requirements for registration 

25 include providing his name, his residence address, and the names 

26 and addresses of any places where he is or will be an employee or 

27 student, among other information. He further understands that 

28 the requirement to keep the registration current includes 

6 
MEMOru\N!lUM OF PLEA AGREEMENT llNl>ER RULE ll(C) 

OF THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 informing at least one jurisdiction in which he resides, is an 

2 employee, or student not later than three business days after any 

3 change in name, residence, employment, or student status. The 

4 defendant has been advised, and understands, that failure to 

5 comply with these obligations subjects him to prosecution for 

6 failure to register under federal law, 18 U.S.C. § 2250, which is 

7 punishable by a fine or imprisonment, or both. 

8 (r) The defendant agrees to forfeit all computers, laptops, 

9 and computer related equipment that were seized by Immigration 

10 and Customs Enforcement at the time of his arrest for the instant 

11 offense. 

12 4. Agreements by the Government. 

13 (a) The government will recommend a three-level reduction 

14 in the computation of his offense level if the defendant clearly 

15 demonstrates acceptance of responsibility for his conduct as 

16 defined in Section 3El.l. of the United States Sentencing 

17 Commission Guidelines Manual. 

18 (bl The government will dismiss Count One of the indictment 

19 in this case if the defendant is sentenced under the terms of 

20 this plea agreement. 

21 (c) The government agrees that an additional component of a 

22 reasonable sentence will be a term of supervised release of 

23 fifteen years (180 months). 

24 (d) 'rhe government will not argue for any sentencing 

25 enhancements not referenced in Section 3, above. In addition, the 

26 government agrees that a reasonable sentence is the low end of 

27 the applicable guideline range of 63-78 months, or 63 months. 

28 /// 

7 
MEMORANDUM OF PLEA .AGREl!MEm' UNllER RULE ll(C) 

OF THE FEDER.AL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 5. Factual Basis. 

2 The defendant will plead guilty because he is in fact guilty 

3 of the crime set forth in Count Two of the indictment. Defendant 

4 also agrees that the following are the facts of this case, 

s although he acknowledges that, as to other facts, the parties may 

6 disagree: 

7 On or about April 15, 2009, in Kern County, within the State 
and Eastern District of California, and elsewhere did 

8 knowingly possess one or more matters which contained any 
visual depiction that had been mailed, shipped, or 

9 transported in interstate or foreign commerce, or which was 
produced using materials which had been so mailed, shipped, 

10 or transported, the producing of which involved a minor 
engaging in sexually explicit conduct and the depiction was 

11 of such conduct, specifically: the defendant possessed on an 
internal hard disc drive of a computer, one or more compact 

12 discs and a thumb drive at least one image file which 
contained a visual depiction, the producing of which 

13 involved the use of a minor engaged in sexually explicit 
conduct, and was of such conduct, as defined in Title l.8, 

14 United States Code, Section 2256, and which had traveled in 
interstate commerce all in violation of Title 18, United 

15 States Code, Section 2252 (a) ( 4 J (BJ • 

16 6. Potential Sentence. 

17 D.efendant understands that because the count to which he is 

18 pleading guilty occurred after November 1 1 1987, the court will 

19 be required to consult the Sentencing Guidelines adopted by the 

20 United States Sentencing Commission. Further, he understands 

21 that the court may choose a sentence above or below the 

22 applicable guideline range depending on the aggravating or 

23 mitigating facts of the defendant's case. The following are the 

24 potential penalties that the defendant faces: 

25 18 u.s.c. § 2252{a) (4) (B): Possession of Material 
Involving The Sexual Exploitation of Minors: 

26 

27 

28 

(a) Imprisonment. 

Maximum: Ten (10) years. 

(b) Fine. 

8 
MEMORANDUM OF PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RULJ;: ll(C) 

OF THE FEDJ;:RllL RULJ;:S OF CRIMINAL PROCJ;:DURE 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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.Maximum: Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($250, 000). 

(c) Both such fine and imprisonment. 

(d) Term of Supervised Release. 

Lifetime 

(Should the defendant violate any of the terms of 
his supervised release, he can be returned to 
prison for the remaining period of supervised 
release actually imposed by the court, or five 
years whichever is less.) 

(e) Penalty Assessment: 

Mandatory:· One Hundred Dollars ($100). 

7. Waiver of Rights. 

Defendant understands that by pleading guilty he surrenders 

certain rights, including the following: 

(a) If defendant persisted in a plea of not guilty to the 

charges against him, he would have the right to a public and 

speedy trial. The trial could be either a jury trial or a trial 

by a judge sitting without a jury. Defendant has a right to a 

jury trial. But in order that the trial be conducted by a judge 

sitting without a jury, defendant, the government and the judge 

all must agree that the trial be conducted by the judge without a 

jury. 

(b) If the trial were a jury trial, the jury would be 

composed of twelve lay persons selected at random. Defendant and 

his attorney would have a say in who the jurors would be by 

removing prospective jurors for cause where actual bias or other 

disqualification is shown, or without cause by exercising 

peremptory challenges. The jury would have to agree unanimously 

before it could return a verdict of either guilty or not guilty. 

The jury would be instructed that defendant is presumed innocent 

9 
MEMORANPUM OF PLEA AGRllEMEN'l' UNDER RULE ll(C) 

OP THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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1 and that it could not convict him unless, after hearing all the 

2 evidence, it was persuaded of his guilt beyond a reasonable 

3 doubt. 

4 (c) If the trial were held before a judge without a jury, 

5 the judge would find the facts and determine, after hearing all 

6 the evidence, whether or not he was persuaded of the defendant's 

7 guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. 

8 (d) At a trial, whether by a jury or a judge, the 

9 government would be required to present its witnesses and other 

10 evidence against defendant. Defendant would be able to confront 

11 those government witnesses and his attorney would be able to 

12 cross-examine them. In turn, defendant could present witnesses 

13 and other evidence on his own behalf. If the witnesses for 

14 defendant would not appear voluntarily, he could require their 

15 attendance through the subpoena power of the Court. At trial, the 

16 defendant would also have the right to assistance of legal 

17 counsel. If he could not afford legal counsel, one would be 

18 appointed for him by the court at no expense to him. 

19 (e) At a trial, defendant would have a privilege against 

20 self-incrimination so that he could decline to testify, 

21 and no inference of guilt could be drawn from this refusal to 

22 testify. 

23 Defendant understands that by pleading guilty he·is waiving 

24 all of the rights set forth above and defendant's attorney has 

25 explained those rights to him and the consequences of his waiver 

26 of those rights. 

27 /// 

28 /// 

10 
MEMORANDUM Oli' PLEA AGREEMENT UNllER RULE ll (CJ 

OF THE FEDERAL RULES Oli' CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 



Case 1:09-cr-00169-AWI Document 17 Filed 10/23/09 Page 11of12 

1 8. Questions by Court. 

2 Defendant understands that if the court questions him under 

3 oath, on the record and in the presence of counsel, about the 

4 offense to which he has pleaded guilty, his answers, if false, 

5 may later be used against him in a prosecution for perjury. 

6 9. Entire Agreement. 

7 This plea of guilty is freely and voluntarily made and not 

8 the result of force or threats or of promises apart from those 

9 set forth in this plea agreement. There have been no 

10 representations or promises from anyone as to what sentence this 

11 Court will impose. 

12 10. Court not a Party. 

13 It is understood by the parties that the sentencing court is 

14 neither a party to nor bound by this agreement and the sentencing 

15 judge is free to impose the maximum penalties as set forth in 

16 paragraph 6. Further, in making its sentencing decision, the 

17 Court may take into consideration any and all facts and 

18 circumstances concerning the criminal activities of defendant, 

19 including activities which may not have been charged in the 

20 indictment. 

21 11. Presentence Report. 

22 Defendant understands that the United States Probation 

23 Office is not a party to this agreement and will conduct an 

24 independent investigation of defendant's activities and his 

25 background. It will then prepare a presentence report which it 

26 will submit to the Court as its independent sentencing 

27 recommendation. In addition, the government will fully apprise 

28 

11 
MEMORANDUM OF PLEA AGREEMENT UNDER RUioE 11 (C) 

OF THE FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 
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l the Probation Office, as well as the Court, of the full and true 

2 nature, scope and extent of the defendant's criminal activities, 

3 including information on his background and criminal history. 

4 

5 

6 
DATED: 

7 

8 

9 DATED: 

10 
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LAWRENCE G. BROWN 
United. States Attorney 

BRIAN W. ENOS, Esq. 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
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Defendant 

ARED M. T PSON, Esq. 
Attorneys for Defendant 
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United States District Court 
Eastern District of California 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
v. 

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 

RAFFIEL NORWOOD 
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) 

Case Number: 1 :09CR00169-001 

Jared Thompson 
Defendant's Attorney 

THE DEFENDANT: 

[i/] pleaded guilty to count(s): Two of the Indictment. 
[] pleaded nolo contendere to counts(s) _which was accepted by the court. 
[] was found guilty on count(s) _after a plea of not guilty. 

ACCORDINGLY, the court has adjudicated that the defendant is guilty of the following offense(s): 

Title & Section 

18 use 2252(a)(4)(B) 

Nature of Offense 

Possession of Material Involving the Sexual 
Exploitation of Minors 

Date Offense 
Concluded 

04/15/2009 

Count 
Number(s) 

Two 

The defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through J_ of this judgment. The sentence is imposed 
pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. 

[] The defendant has been found not guilty on counts(s) _and is discharged as lo such count(s). 

[i/] Count(s) One of the Indictment (is)(are) dismissed on the motion of the United States. 

[] Indictment is lo be dismissed by District Court on motion of the United States. 

[I Appeal rights given. [i/] Appeal rights waived. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within 30 
days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments 
imposed by this judgment are fully paid. If ordered to pay restitution, the defendant must notify the court and United States 
attorney of material changes in economic circumstances. 

January 4, 201 O 
Date of Imposition of Judgment 

/SI ANTHONY W. ISHll 
Signature of Judicial Officer 

ANTHONY W. ISHll, United States District Judge 
Name & Title of Judicial Officer 

January e; 2010 
Date 
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IMPRISONMENT 

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a 
total term of 63 months . 

[V'] The court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: 
The Court recommends that the defe.ndant be incarcerated in a California facility, but only insofar as this accords 
with security classification and space availability. 

[V'] The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal. 

[] The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this district. 
[] at_on_. 
[]as notified by the United States Marshal. 

[] The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons: 
[ ] before _ on _. 
[]as notified by the United States Marshal. 
[] as notified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Officer. 
If no such institution has been designated, to the United States Marshal for this district. 

RETURN 
I have executed this judgment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on __________ to _______________ _ 

at _____________ , with a certified copy of this judgment. 

UNITED STATES MARSHAL 

By 
Deputy U.S. Marshal 
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SUPERVISED RELEASE 
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of 180 months . 

Judgment - Page 3 of 7 

The defendant must report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours of release from the 
custody of the Bureau of Prisons. 

The defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime. 

The defendant shall not unlawfully possess a controlled substance. The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of controlled 
substance. The defendant shall submit to one drug test within 15 days of release from imprisonment and at least two periodic drug 
tests thereafter, not to exceed four (4) drug tests per month. 

[X] The above drug testing condition is suspended based on the court's determination that the defendant poses a low risk of 
future substance abuse. (Check, if applicable.) 

[ii] The defendant shall not possess a firearm, destructive device, or any other dangerous weapon. (Check, if applicable.) 

[V] The de_fendant shall submit to the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer. (Check, if applicable.) 

[ii] The defendant shall register and comply with the requirements in the federal and state sex offender registration agency in the 
jurisdiction of conviction, Eastern District of California, and in the state and in any jurisdiction where the defendant resides, is 
employed, or is a student. (Check, if applicable.) 

[] The defendant shall participate in an approved program for domestic violence. (C_heck, if applicable.) 

If this judgment imposes a fine or a restitution obligation, it is a condition of supervised release that the defendant pay in accordance 
with the Schedule of Payments sheet of this judgment. 

The defendant must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as well as with any additional conditions 
on the attached page. 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION 
1) the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without permission of the court or probation officer; 
2) the defendant shall report to the probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete written report within the first five days 

of each month; 
3) the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow instructions pf the probation officer; 
4) the defendant shall support his or her dependants and meet other family responsibilities; 
5) the defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training or other 

acceptable reasons; 
6) the defendant shall notify the probation officer ten days prior to any change in residence or employment; 
7) the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol; 
8) the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered; 
9) the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted 

of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; 
10) the defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere, and shall permit confiscation of 

any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer; 
11) the defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement 

officer; 
12) the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without 

the permission of the court; · 
13) as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant's 

criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to 
confirm the defendant's compliance with such notification requirement. 

I 
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION 
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1. As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall participate in a program of outpatient 
mental hertlth treatment. 

2. As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall participate in a co-payment plan for 
treatment or testing and shall make payment directly to the vendor lmder contract with the 
United States Probation Office of up to $25 per month. 

3. The defendant shall submit to the search of his person, property, house, residence, vehicle, 
papers, computer, other electronic communication or data storage devices or media, and effects 
at any time, with or without a warrant, by any law enforcement or probation officer in the lawful 
discharge of the officer's supervision functions with reasonable suspicion concerning unlawful 
conduct or a violation of a condition of probation or supervised release. Failure to submit to a 
search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall warn any other residents that the 
premises may be subject to searches pursuant to this condition. 

4. The defendant shall not possess or use a computer or any device that has access to any "on-line 
computer service" unless approved by the probation officer. This includes any Internet service 
provider, bulletin board system, or any other public or private computer network. 

5. The defendant shall have no contact with children under the age of 18 unless approved by the 
probation officer in advance. The defendant is not to loiter within 100 feet of school yards, 
parks, playgrounds, arcades, or other places primarily used by children under the age of 18. This 
shall include that the defendant is not to engage in any occupation, either paid or volunteer, 
which exposes him directly or indirectly with children under the age of 18. 

6. The defendant shall consent to the probation officer and/or probation service representative 
conducting periodic unam10unced exan1inations of (a) any computer, or (b) computer-related 
device, or © equipment that has an internal or external modem which is in the possession or 
control of the defendant. The defendant consents to retrieval and copying of all data from any 
such computer, computer-related device, or equipment as well as any internal or external 
peripherals to ensure compliance with conditions. The defendant consents to removal of such 
computer, computer-related device, and equipment for purposes of conducting a more thorough 
inspection; and analysis. 

The defendant consents to having installed on any computer, computer-related device, and 
equipment, at the defendant's expense, any hardware or software systems to monitor the use of 
such computer, computer-related device, and equipment at the direction of the probation officer, 
and agrees not to tamper with such hardware or software and not install or use any software 
programs designed to hide, alter, or delete his/her computer activities. The defendant consents 
to not installing new hardware without the prior approval of the probation officer. 

7. The defendant shall not possess, own, use, view, read, or frequent places with material depicting 
and/or describing sexually explicit conduct, including computer images, pictures, photographs, 
books, writings, drawings, videos, or video games. "Sexually explicit conduct" as defined in 18 
USC 2256(2) means actual or simulated (a) sexual intercourse, including genital-genital, oral-
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genital, or oral-anal, whether between the same or opposite sex; (b) bestiality; © masturbation; 
( d) sadistic or masochistic abuse; or ( e) lascivious exhibition of the genitals or pubic area of any 
person. 

8. The defendant shall provide all requested business/personal phone records to the probation 
officer. The defendant shall disclose to the probation officer any existing contracts with 
telephone line/cable service providers. The defendant shall provide the probation officer with 
written authorization to request a record of all outgoing or incoming phone calls from any 
service provider. 

9. The defendant shall consent to third-paity disclosure to ai1y employer or potential employer, 
concerning any computer-related restrictions that are imposed upon him/her. This includes any 
activities in which you are acting as a technician, advisor, or consultant with or without any 
monetary gain or other compensation. 

10. The defendant shall attend, cooperate with, and actively participate in a sex offender treatment 
and therapy program [which may include, but is not limited to, risk assessment, polygraph 
examination, computer voice stress analysis (CVSA)] as approved and directed by the probation 
officer and as recommended by the assigned treahnent provider. 

11. The defendant's residence shall be pre-approved by the probation officer. The defendant shall 
not reside in direct view of places such as school yards, parks, public swilmning pools, or 
recreational centers, playgrounds, youth centers, video arcade facilities, or otherplaces primarily 
used by children under the age of 18. 
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The defendant must pay the total criminal monetary penalties under the Schedule of Payments on Sheet 6. 

Totals: 
Assessment 

$ 100 
Fine 

$ 
Restitution 

$ 

[] The determination of restitution is deferred until_. An Amenaed Judgment in a Criminal Case (AO 245C) will be entered 
after such determination. 

[] The defendant must make restitution (including community restitution) to the following payees in the amountlisted below. 

If the defendant makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive an approximately proportioned payment, unless 
specified otherwise in the priority order or percentage payment column below. However, pursuant to 18 U .S.C. § 3664(i), 
all nonfederal victims must be paid before the United States is paid. 

Name of Payee Total Loss* Restitution Ordered Priority or Percentage 

TOTALS: $ $_ 

[] Restitution amount ordered pursuant to plea agreement$_ 

[] The defendant must pay interest on restitution and a fine of more than $2,500, unless the restitution or fine is paid in full 
before the fifteenth day after the date of the judgment, pursuantto 18 U.S.C. § 3612(1). All of the payment options on Sheet 
6 may be subject to penalties for delinquency and default, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(g). 

[ ] The court determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest and it is ordered that: 

[] The interest requirement is waived for the [ ] fine [ ] restitution 

[] The interest requirement for the []fine [] restitution is modified as follows: 

[] If incarcerated, payment of the fine is due during imprisonment at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter 
and payment shall be through the Bureau of Prisons Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. 

[] If incarcerated, payment of restitution is due during imprisonment at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter 
and payment shall be through the Bureau of Prisons Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. 

**Findings for the total amount of losses are required under Chapters 109A, 110, 110A, and 113A of Title 18 for offenses 
committed on or after September 13, 1994, but before April 23, 1996. 
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DEFENDANT: RAFFIEL NORWOOD 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Payment of the total fine and other criminal monetary pen_alties shall be due as follows: 

A [II'] 

[ l 
[ l 

Lump sum payment of$ _J_QQ_ due immediately, balance due 

not later than , or 
in accordance with [] C, [] D, [] E,or [] F below; or 

B [] Payment to begin immediately (may be combined with [] C, [] D, or [] F below); or 

C [] Payment in equal_ (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of$_ over a period of _(e.g., months or years), 
to commence_ (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after the date of this judgment; or 

D [] Payment in equal_ (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of$_ over a period of _(e.g., months or years), 
to commence_ (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release from imprisonment to a term of supervision; or 

E [] Payment during the term of supervised release will commence within _(e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release from 
imprisonment. The court will setthe payment plan based on an assessment of the defendant's ability to pay atthattime; 
or 

F [] Special instructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary penalties: 

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal monetary 
penalties is due during imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, exceptthose payments made through the Federal Bureau 
of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the clerk of the court. 

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties imposed. 

[] Joint and Several 

Defendant and Co-Defendant Names and Case Numbers (including defendant number), Total Amount, Joint and Several 
Amount, and corresponding payee, if appropriate: 

[] The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution. 

[] The defendant shall pay the following court cost(s): 

[X] The defendant shall forfeit the defendant's interest in the following property to the United States: 

The Preliminary Order of Forfeiture filed on November 20, 2009 is hereby made final and is incorporated into this judgment 
in it's entirety. 



~HCS 

• JENNIFER KENT 
DIRECTOR 

APR 1 3 2017 

State of California-Health and Human Services Agency 

Department of Health Care Services 

Raffiel Arvon Norwood 
3633 Banyon Court 
Rosamond, CA 93560 

Re: Licensed Vocational Nurse 
License No. 216516 

Dear Mr. Norwood: 

EDMUND G. BROWN JR. 
GOVERNOR 

The Deputy Director and Chief Counsel of the California State Department of Health 
Care Services (Department) has been notified by the California Board of Vocational 
Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians (Board) that your license has been surrendered, 
while a disciplinary hearing on that.license was pending, effective August 26, 2016. As a 
provider of health care services, you were granted certain permissions to receive 
payment from the Medi-Cal program by operation of law with or without applying for 
enrollment. Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code section 14043.6, the Department 
is required to automatically suspend these permissions, which means that you are 
precluded from being eligible to receive payment from the Medi-Cal program directly or 
indirectly. This requirement applies to any individual or entity that has a license, 
certificate, or other approval to provide health care which is revoked or suspended by a 
federal or state licensing, certification, or approval authority, has otherwise lost that 
license, certificate, or approval, or has surrendered that license, certificate, or approval 
while a disciplinary hearing on that license, certificate, or approval was pending. This 
suspension is non-discretionary, and shall be effective on the date that the license, 
certificate, or approval was revoked, lost, or surrendered. Furthermore, pursuant to 
Business and Professions Code section 2859, et seq., it is unlawful to peFform the 
duties of a licensed vocational nurse without a license. 

In addition, the Department has been notified of your October 23, 2009, conviction in 
United States District Court, Easter District of California (U.S. v. Raffiel Arvon Norwood, 
No. 1 :09-CR-00169 AWi) for violation of title 18, United States Code section 2252(a)(4). 
This is a conviction that has.been determined by the Board to be substantially related to 
the qualifications, functions, or duties of a provider of service. Pursuant to Welfare and 
Institutions Code section 14123, subdivision (a), the Director is required to suspend 
these permissions in certain cases, which means that you are precluded from being 
eligible to receive payment from the Medi-Cal program directly or indirectly~ This 

Office of Legal Services, MS 001 O 
P.O. Box 997413, Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Fax: (916) 440-7712 
Internet Address: www.dhcs.ca.gov 
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requirement applies to anyone who provides health services whenever that person is 
· convicted of any felony or any misdemeanor involving fraud, abuse of the Medi-Cal 
program or any patient, or otherwise substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 
or duties of a provider of service. (Welf. & Inst. Code,§ 14123.25.) 

Therefore, on behalf of the Director of the Department, you are hereby notified that you 
are prohibited from being able to receive payment from the Medi-Cal program for an 
indefinite period of time, effective August 26, 2016. Your name will be posted on the 
"Medi-Cal Suspended and Ineligible Provider List," available on the Internet. During the 
period of your suspension, no person or entity, including an employer, may submit any 
claims to the Medi-Cal program for items or services rendered by you. If you are 
currently enrolled in Medi-Cal, that enrollment will be terminated. Any involvement by 
you directly or indirectly (i.e., as an office manager, administrator, billing clerk 
processing or preparing claims for payment, salesperson for medical equipment, etc., or 
utilizing any other provider number or group or clinic number for services rendered by 
you) will result in nonpayment of the claim(s) submitted. Any person who pr.esents or 
causes to be presented a claim for equipment or services rendered by a person 
suspended froin participation in the Medi-Cal program shall be subject to suspension 
from participation in the Medi-Cal program, the assessment of civil money penalties, 
and/or criminal prosecution. (See Welt. & Inst. Code,§§ 14043.61, 14107, 14123.2; Cal. 
Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 51458.1, 51484, 51485.1.) The Department will seek 
recoupment of any monies paid for claims presented to the Medi-Cal program for 
services or supplies provided by you during the duration of your .suspension. 

If you have any questions about this action, please submit your concerns, in writing, to 
the Office of Legal Services, Mandatory Suspension Desk, at the address above. 

Sincerely, 

~-7 s:rw. Granda 
Attorney 

cc: See Next Page 



Board of Registered Nursing 
P.O. Boic944210 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2100 

Board of Vocational Nursing 
& Psychiatric Technicians , 
2535 Capitol Oaks Drive, Suite 205 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

Avril Singh 
Provider Enrollment Division 
Department of Health Care Services 
MS 4704 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Teresa Ghiardi 
Provider Enrollment Division 
Department of Health Care Services 
MS 4704 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Becky Swol, Chief 
Clinical Assurance 
Administrative Support Division 
Field Operations Support Branch 
Department of Health Care Services 
MS4504 
P.O. Box 997419 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7419 

Debbie Rielley 
Criminal Intelligence Specialist Ill 
Criminal Division Office of Attorney General 
Bureau of Medi-Cal Fraud and Elder Abuse 
2329 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833-4252 ' 

Hadi Azimi, Auditor 
Audits & Investigations 
Case Development Section 
Medical Review Branch l/ 

Department of Health Care Services 
MS 2301 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7 413 

Ivan Negroni 
Special Agent-in-Charge 
Office of Inspector General 

. U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 
Office of Investigations · 
1855 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 585 
Concord, CA 94520 

John Mikanda 
Primary Care and Family Health 
Department of Public Healjh 
MS 8306 
P.O. Box997419 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7419 

Marisa Razo 
Medical Review Branch 
Audits & Investigations 
Department of Health Care Services 
MS 2300 . 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7 413 

Martin Gomez, Chief. 
Medical Review Branch 
Case Development Section 
Audits & Investigations 
Department of Health Care Services 
MS2300 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Mike Schumacher 
·Senior Management Auditor 
Bureau of Medi-Cal Fraud and Elder Abuse 
Criminal Division, Office of Attorney General 
2329 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833-4252 

Robert Dimand, Chief 
Children's Medical Services Branch 
Department of Health Care Services 
MS 8100 
1515 K Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 99814 

Sandie Harden · 
Provider Enrollment Division, MS 4704 
Department of Health Care Services 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7.413 

Patrona N. Davis 
Investigations Analyst 
Office of, Inspector G1;meral 
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 
Office of Investigations - Exclusions Branch 
90 71" Street, Suite 3-500 
San Francisco, CA 94103 

Joann M. Francis 
Investigations Analyst 
Office of Investigations - Exclusions Branch 
Office of the inspector General 
U.S. Department of Health.and Human Services 
P.O. Box 23871 
Washington, D.C. 20026 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney Gcne1·al of California 
LINDA K. SCHNEIDER 
Senior Assistant Attomey General 
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General · 

4 . State Bur No. 225325 · . 
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300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 · 
.Telephone: (213) 897·2542 
Faoshnlle: (213) 897 -2804 · 

Attorneys for Comp,lainant 

8 BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF VOCATIONAL NURSING AND PSYCHIATRIC TECHNICIANS 

9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFirAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

10 11-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
11 

l2 

13 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

RAFFIEL ARVON NORWOOD 
3633 Bnnyon Court 
Rosnmond, CA 93560 

14 Vocational Nul"se Lleei1se No. VN 216516 

· 15 Respondent: 

16 

17 Complninunt alleges: 

Case No. VN-2014-4279 

ACCUSATION 

18 PARTIES 

19 l. Karneka Brown, PhD., MBA, NP (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her 

20 9fficial capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Vocational Nursing ~ind Psych.iatric 

21 Tcch11icia'ns, Department of Consumer Affairs., , 

22 2, On or about August 25, 2005, the Board ofVocatiom1l Nursing and Psychiatric 

23 Technicians Issued Vocational Nurse License Numbct' VN 216516 to'Rnffiel Arvon Norwood 

24 (Respondent), The Vocational Nu1·sc License was ln full force and effect at all times .relevant to 

25 the char:ges brought heroin and wlll expire on Mnrch 31, 2017, unless i·enowcd. 

26 .JURISDICTION 

27 3. Th is Accusation is brought before the. Board of Vocational Nursing imd Psychiatric 
. . . 

28 Technicians (Board), Department of Consumer Affairs, und(}r the authoi:ity of the following law~. 

1 
. 

( RAFI'!HL ARVON NORWOOI;l) ACCUSATION 



I. All section teferenccs nro to the Business and Profcs~ions Code (Code) unless otherwise 

2 Indicated. 

3 4. Section 2875 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that.the Board may dlscip!hte 

4 the holder of 11 vocational n\lrse license for any reason provided in :"rticle 3 (commencing with 

5 section 2875) of the Vocational Nurning Praptice Act. 

6 5, Section 118, subdivision (b) of.the Code provides, In pertinent part, that the 

7 · expirntio11 of a licenso sha1! not de1irlve the Board jurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary 

8 action dudng the period within which the lloc11se may .be renewed, restored, i•eissucd or 

9 rninstated. Under sect~on 2892. 1 of the Code, the Board may renew an o.xpired license at any 

Io time within four years after the expiration. 

11 ST,ATUTORY PROVISIONS · 

12 6. Section 482 ofthe Code states: 

13 . 

14 
15 

16 

17 

1B 

· Each. boal'd ;mder the provisions ofthis code shall develop criteria to evaluate 
ti1e rehabilitation of n pe1~011 when; · . 

(a) Considering the denial of a license by the board imder Section 480; or 

(b) Considering suspensiol1 orrevooatkm ofa Hcense under Section 490. 

. Bach' board shall takch1to account all compctent'evidcnce of rehabilitation 
fu111ished hy the applicant oi· licensee, · · · 

7, Section 490 of the Code provides, fo per~inent par!:, that the Board may suspend or. 

19 ' revoke a license .when it finds that the lioci:rncc has been convicted of a crime substantially related . 

20 to tho qua)ific!itiom.i, fonotlons or duties of a llcensed vocational nurse, 

2 l 8, Section 493· of the Code states: 

22 

23 

24 
25 

26 

27' 

28 

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, ln a prnoeedlng 004ductcd by a board 
within the department pursuant to law to deny an appl!c11tio11 for a license or to suspend · 
or revoke a license or otherwise take d.isoipllnary action against a person who holds a · 
license, upon the ground that.the applicant or the licensee has beeri convicted of a crime 
suhstantlally !'elated to the· qualifications, functions, and duties of the lioonscc in 
question, the record of oon'viction of the ci·ime shall be conclusive evldonoe of the fact 
that the conviction 00<1urred, 'but·only of that fact, and the lioard may inquire into the 
circumstance's st1rr0tindi11~ the commission of the crime h1 ordor to fix the degree of 
discipline or to deteim!ne 1f the conviction is substantially related to the qualifications, 
funotlons, and duties of the licensee in question. · 

As used in this section, "license" includes "certificate,'' "permit," "authority," and 
"registration." · 
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1 9, Seotlon 2878 of the Code states: 

2 

3 

.4 

5 

6. 

7· 

8 

9 

10 

The Board may suspend or revoke a license issued under this chapter [the 
Vocational Nursing Practice Act (Bus. & Pmf; Code,. 2840, et seq.)] for any of the . 
following: . · . · . . . ' . . . 

(a). UnprofesslqnaJ conduct, which inclt1des, but is not lhnited to, the'following: .. 
'l' I 

.' (f) Convlctfon of a crime subst~ntlally related to the qualifications, functions, and 
duties of a lieensed vooatibnal mn:se, it1 whlchovent the record of the conviction shall be 
co1wlusivo l)Vidence of:the conviction, · 

. . 
· (k) The commission of !lny act p\mishable as a sexuail;ii rclated crime, if that 

act is substantially related to the duties and functions of the hcensce. , , , 

l l 10, Section 2878.6 of the Code states: 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

· A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction follqwing a plea of nolo contendere 
made to a oh11rge substantially related to tho qualifications, ftmotlons and duties of a 
llcensod vocational nurse is deemed to be a convlotion within themeaningofthis artlole. 
The board may order the license suspended 01· revoked, 01· .may decli11e to Issue a 
lioonse, when the tilne 'for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been 
a-ffiimed on appeal or when an order gt'tmtlng probation Is made .~uspending the 
imposition of sentence, lrrcspoctive ofa subsequent order under the provisions of Section 
1203,4 of tho Penal Code ·a![owing such p<:>rson to withdraw lils plea of gullty and to 
enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside tho verdict' of guiky, m· dismissing tlw 
accusatio11, Information or indictment. . . . . 

REG\JLATORY PROVISIONS. 

19 11. California Codeol:Rei,'1.llations, title 16, section 2521, states:. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

For tho purposes of denial, suspension, or rovouation of a license pursuant to 
Div.lsion 1,5 (commencing with S.ectlon 47 5l of the Business and Pmfosslons Code, a 
crime or aot shall be considered to be sub~Jantially relat<id to the qualifications, functions 
or duties of a i!cen.~ed vocatlonal nurse if to a substunt!ul degree it evidences pl'esont or 
potential unfitness ofa llconsed vocational nurse to perform the fu11ctlons authorized by 
his llcenso in. a maimer .consistenJ \\'.Ith the publi~ health, safety, 01· w~lfru·o. Suob crimes 
or acts shall mcludo but not be ltmtted to those mvolving the followmg: . 

(a) Procuring a license.by fraud, m'isrepresentation,or mistake . 

. · (b) A convict\on of practiiling medicine without a licen~e in violation of Chapter 5 
of Division 2 of the Bl!siness and Professions Code, . , . 

(c) Violating or attempting to violate, dit·eotly or indirectly, or assisting in or 
ab<:l\ti~g the violatiol) of, or conspfringto violate any prqvis.lp11 or term of'Ghapter 6,5, 
Division 2 of the BusiMss and l?rofessfons Code, 

3 
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. 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1J 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19_ 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

( d) Aiding or assisting, .or agreeing to aid or assist any person or persons, whcthet· 
a.lic\lnsad· physician.or not, in the performance of or arranging for a violation of any"of 
the provisions of Article 13, Chapter 5, Divislon2 oftl1e Business and Professions Code. 

( e) Conviction of a crime Involving fiscal dishonesty, 

(f) Any crime 01· act involving tho sale; gift, administration; or :l\u·nishing of 
"narcotios or dangerous drugs or dangeroi1s devices" as defined in Section 4022 of the 
Business and Profbssions Code, . . . · · · . . 

12, Califomia Code of Regii_lat!ons, title 16; section_ 2522 states: 

When con_sidedng a) the denial ofallc_cnso under Section 480 of the Bqslncss and 
Professions Code, b) the suspension or revocation of a llc1;111se on the ground that a 
licensee has been convicted of a crime, or c) n petition for reinstatement of a Hoense 
tlndel' Section 2787 .7 of the Business and Professions Code, the Board ln evaluating the 
rehabilitation of an individual and his 01· hel' present ellgibllily for a lleense, will considei· 
the following criteria: · . 

(1) Nature and severity of the act(s), offense(s), or cl'ime(s) under cons!doratlon, 

(2) Act11nl or potential harm to the public, 

(3) Aetual or potential hru·m to any patlenl. 

(4) Overall dlsciplimwy record. 

(5) Overall crimmal actions.taken by any fec!ei·al, stato0 or local agency or court. 

(6) Prior wru·nings on record or prior remc(.ji.ation. 

(7) Number and/or variety of current violiltlons, 

(8) Mitigation evidence, 

(9) In case of~ criminal conviction, compli!lnot; with .temm of sentencc·anp/01· 
court·orderedprobi1t1on, . · . · . 

(10) 'time passed since the act(s) or offense(s) occurred, . 

· (J 1) If ap\ilicablo; evidence of proc~etl!ngs to dismiss a 6011vletlo1111m:si1unt to 
Penal Code aect10n 1203.4. · 

(12) Co~pcrniion ~ith the Boal'd and othm· law enforcement or r~gulutozy agencies, 

(13) Other rehabil!tatfon evidence. 

COSTS 

26 J 3, Section 125 .3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request tho 

27 administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have _committed a violation or violations of 

2"8 the licensing aot to pay a sum not to exceed thareasonabl(} costs of the investigation and 

4 
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1 enforco111ei1t of the case, with failure of the l lcontiate to comply subjecting the license t() not 

2 ·being renewed or reinstated, If.a case settles, recov.ery of inwstigation and enforcement easts 

3 may be included hi a stipulated settlement. 

'4 lJ:IRST QAUSE FOR DISC!l'LINJ£ 

5 (October 23, 2009'Crimlnnl Convlctiou for Possession'ofMntel'ial 

6 Involving the Sex1111i Exploitation· of Minors) 

7 14, Respondent has subjected his license to disciplinary acti~n u111for sectiomr490.and 

· 8 2878, s11bdlvlsion (f)_ of tho. C.ode in that he was convlcted of a crime .that ls substantially xelated 

9 to the qua!iftcations, functions, and duties of a licc11Sed vocational nurse, 111e clt'Cumstanccs are 

l O as follows: 

. 11 a, On oi: about October 23, 2009, in a criminal proceeding entitled \Jrilted 

12 States ofAmerlca v. Rtf/flel Arvon Norwood, in United States District Coiirt, Bf)stern District of 

13 . California, case numbct 1 ;09-CR· 00169 A WI, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to Cottnt 2 of 

14 a two-count indictment, possession of material involving the soxunl ,exploitation of minors, Iii 

15 vlolatio11 of Title 18, United States Code, section 2252(a)(4), a folony. In exe>hango fortho plea, 

16 the court dismissed Count 1 of the inc\fotment, i·ecoipt or distribution of material involving the . . 
17 sexual exploitntion of minoi·s (18 u:s.c, § 2252(a)(2)). 

18 b. As a result of the conviction, on Jamiary 4, 2010, Respondent was 

. 19 committed te the mwtody oftiHJ Unlte9 States Bureau ofPrlso11s fol' a total term cif 63 months. 

20 U Jl9n release from impl'isonmc1it, Respondent was ordered to supervised release f:or a term of 180 

21 mm1ths 011 standard conditiops, and spoclal conditions that include, but are not limited to, a 

22 requirnn1ent to pill'ticipate in a program of outpatient mental health treatment, submit' to a Fourth 

23 Amendmo1it waivci., and not possess or.use any computer oi· any device tllat has access to any 

24 "on-line oomptitor se1·vlcc" unless apprnved by his.probatioi1 office!'.' Respondent was prohibited 

25 from any contact with cliiluret1 under the ·age of 18 tlnless apprnved by the pmbittion officer in 

2.6 · advttnce, and ho ls prohibited from loitering within 100 feet of school yatds, parks, playgrounds, 

27 arcades, 01· other places primarily used by 'chlldren 11nder the ·age of 18. Respondent is prohibited 

Z8 from engaging ln any occupation, either paid or \IOlu11tcor, which exposes hl111 directly or 

5 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

.6 

7 

8 

9 

. 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

lndirectly with .children uiider tho ago of 18, Respondent is subject to periodic u11an1101111ced. 

examinations of any compntet', computer-related device, or equipment that has nn internal or 

external modem which is in the possession or contl'OJ ofRespo11de11t. Respondent was required to 

consent to the installation.of hardware oi·Mftw.are systems hls compnter, computer-related 
. . 

devices, and equipment, to monitor its use, Respondent agreed to third-party disclosure to any 

emp'loyer or potential omployei· of the comptiter·related restrictions, Resp.ondentis prohibited 

from pos.sesslng, owning, uslng, viewing, reading, or frequenting places with matel'ial depleting 

and/or descl'ibing sexu11lly eXJilicit conduct, Including computer images, pictvres, photographs, 

books, writings, drawings, videos, or videp games, Respondent must attend, cooperate wltl11• and 

·actively parth;iipate in a sex offender treatment and therapy program as approved and directed by 

his .probation officer and as reoomm()l1ded by the assigned treatment provider. Respondent's 

resid1;1nce must be pre-approved by his probation offic<lr; he is prohibited from residing in direct 
' 

view of places such as school yards; parks, publlc swimming pools, m· recrcatiomil centers, 

playgl'ounds, youth centers, video arcade facil!ties1 or other plac~s primarily used by ohlklren 

under the age of 18. Respondent was required :to register as ·a sex offender in the j11risdiction 

where he resides, where he is an mnploye(,l, and where he is a si11d.Mf, 

C, The facts th~t led.to tt;econvictio1rare that on or about April 15; 2009, in 
- . 

18 Korn County, Respondent knowingly possessed matters that had been mailed, shipped, or 

19 transported In Interstate or foreign commerce, that contained visual ·depictions of a minor 

20 engaging in sexually explicit conduct. Speciffoally, Respondent possossod on an internal hard . . ' 

21 disc drive-of a computer,· one or m<lre compact discs, and a thumb (!rive., of at l0wt one image file 

. 22 lhat contained a ·visual do):)ictlon a minor engagod in sexurilly explicit cimduct. 

23 . §ECOND.CAUSE FQRDISCIPLlNE; 
. . . 

24 (Commission of Any Act P1111lshable as· a Sexunlly-Reluted Crime) 

25 15, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action unc!er soction 2878, subdivision (k) in 
. . 

26 that he committed acts that are (and "wore) punishablo as sexually·1'olatec1 crimes in that ho 

27 knowingly possessed iniage files that depicted minors c11gagi11g in sexually explicit conduct, and ' , 
- .--.-- -- - -- -- ___ ,, ______ ---- ------------··---·-,•·········-- .... . ...... _ .............. -····-------···"" _____ ------------

28 was convicted of possessing materiaf involving tho sexual exploitation of ml no rs. 

6 
. ( l!AFF!EJ, ARVON NORWOOD) ACCUSA't!ON 



l PRAYJJ:R 

2 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that· a hearing be held on the matters hereit1 alleged, . . 
3 and that following the hearing, the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians 

. " 
4 issue a peclslon: 

5 1, Rjlvoldng or suapeyndlng Vocational Nurn~ Liconso Nt1mbe1: VN 216516, issued to 

6 Raffiol 'Arvon Norwood;· 

7 2, 01·derlng Raffle I Arvon Norwood to pay tho Board ofV ooationat Nursing and 

8 Psychiatric Technicians the. reasonable costs of the investigation and enfo1·ce111ent of this case, 

. 9 pursuant to Busfoess n11d Professions Co do section 125 .3; 

lo 3. Taking such othe1· and furci1er action as deemed necessary und propel', 

l 1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

o~TED: &.3Lor!.92tJlk ____ ~~~~~~~--J 
. '-Y.lfft;, RAMEKA BROWN, PHD., MBA, NP 

· LA2016500241 
812873 J J.doo 

Execntivc OfJlce1· 
Board of Vocational Nmsing and Psy.ohiatrie Technleians 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of Callfomia 
Complcrlncmt 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF VOCATIONAL NURSING 
AND PSYCHIATRIC TECHNICIANS 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. VN-2014-4279 

RAFFIEL ARVON NORWOOD 
3633 Banyan Comt 
Rosamond, CA 93560 

Vocational Nurse License No. 
VN216516 

Respondent. 

DECISION 

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the Board of· 

Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in 

this matter. 

This Decision shall become effective on AUG 2 6 .· 2016 

It is so ORDERED JUL 2 7 2016 
~~~~~~~~ 

Executive Officei· 
Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians 
Depattment of Consmner Affairs 
State of California 
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KAMALA D, HARRIS 
Attorney General of Califomia 
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
ELYSE M. DAVIDSON 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 285842 

300 So. Spring Street, Suite l 702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
TeleJ?hone: (213) 897-2533 
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Complainant 

8 BEFORE Tim 
BOARD OF VOCATIONAL NURSING AND PSYCHIATRIC TECHNICIANS 

9 DEPAR'l'MENT OF CONSUMER AFFAmS 
STATE OF CAJ:,JFORNIA . 

10 II-~~~~~~~~~~~~~---, 
li 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

In thirMatter of the Accusation Against: 

RAFFIEL ARVON NORWOOD 
3633 Banyon Court 
Rosamond, CA 93560 

Vocational Nurse License No. VN 216516 

Respondent. 

Case No, VN-2014-4279 

OAHNo, 201.6050957 

STlPULATED SURRENDER OF 
LICENSE AND ORDER 

17 IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the pai·ties to the above-

18 entitled proceedings that the following matters are true: 

19 PARTIES 

20 1. K.atneka Brown, PhD. MBA, NP ("Complailumt")--is·the Exel)ufive Officer of the 

21 Board of Vocational Nuralng and Psyohiatrio Technicians ("Board:'). She brought this action 

22 solely in her offi<;ial capacity and is ropresented in this matter by !~ala D. Han·is, Attorney 

23 General of the State of California, by Elyse M. David~on, Deputy Attorney General. 

24 2, Raffiel Arvon Norwood ("Respoliclont:") ls representing himself in this proceeding 

25 and has chosen not to extlroise his right to be represented by counsel. 

26 Iii 

27 Ill 

28 ill . 

1 
Stipulated Surrendot" of License (CnHo No. VN-2014-4279) 

I 
I 

·I 
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1 3, 011 or about August 25, 2005, the Boru·1!'ofVocational Nttl.'si11g 1111d l'sychlatric 

2 Technicians issued Vocational Nurse Llcense.No. VN 216516 to R.espondent Raffle! Arvon 

3 Norwood. The Vocational Nurse License was in full fol'Ce and effect at all times relevant to the 

4 chai•ges brought in Accusation No. VN-2014-4279 and will expil'e on March 31, 2017, unless 

5 renewed. 

6 JURI~DICTION 

7 4. Accusation No. VN-2014-4279 was flied befote the Boa.rd and ls currently pending 

8 against Respondent. The Accusation and all other statutorily requh'ed documents were properly 

9 served on Respondent on June 23, 2016. Respondent timely filed hls Notice of Defense 

10 contestillg the Accusation. A copy of Accusation No. VN-2014-4279 is attached as Exhibit A 

11 and incorporated by reference. 

12 ADVISEMENT AND WANER~ 

13 5, Respondent has carefully read, alld understands the ohatges and allegations in 

14 Accusation No. VN-2014-4279. Respondent also has carefully read, and understands the effects 

15 of this Stipulated Surrender ofLloense and Order. 

16 6. Respondent is fi.Jlly aware ofhis legal rights in this matter, including the .dght to a 

17 hearing on the charges and allegations.I~ the Accusation; the right to be represented by coun'sol, at 

1. 8 his own expense; the right to confront and cross-!}xamine the witnesses against hlm; the right to 

19 present evidence and to testify on.his own behalf; the right to the issuaime of subpoe1ms t.o compel 

20 the a.tttmdanoe of witnesses a.nd the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and 

21 court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California 

22 Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws, 

23 7. Respon4ent vohmtarily, knowingly, and i11telllge11t\ywaives and gives·up each a11d 

24 every right set forth above. 

25 CULPABILITY 

26 8. Respondent admits the truth of each and every cbai·ge and allegation in Accustition 

27 No. VN-2014-4279, agrees that cause exists for diso!pline and hereby surrenders his Vocational 

28 Nurse License No. VN 216516 for the Board's formal acceptance, 

2. 
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1 9. Respondent understands that by signing this stipulation he enables the Boru:d to issue 

2 an order aooepting. the surrender of liia Vocational Nurse License without further process. 

3 CONTINGENCY 

4 10. This stipulation shall be subject ·to app:ioval by the Board ofVooational Nursing and 

5 J>sychlatrio 'T'echnicians. Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and 
. . 

6 the staff of the Board 9fVocational Nursing and Psychlatrfo Technicians may communicate 

7 directly with the Boal'd. regal'ding this stipulation and surrende!', without notice to or participation 

8 by Respondent. By signing the stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not 

9 withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board co11Siders 

10 · and acts upon it. If the Board fulls to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the 

11 Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinru.·y Order shali be of no force or effect, except for this 

12 paragraph, it shall be lnadmissible in any legal action between the pal'ties, ii.nd the Board shall not 

l.3 be disqu11lified from further action by having considered this ma\ter. 

14 11. The parties understand and agree that Poiiable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile 

15 copies of this Stipul~ted Sunender of License and Order, including Portable Document Format 

16 (PDF) and facsimile sigm1tures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals. 

17 12. This Stipulated Surrender of License and 01·der is intended by the pal'ties to be an 

18 integrated writing representing the complete, fmal, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement. 

19 It supersedes any and all priol' or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions, 

20 negotiations; and. commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Surrender of License and Ord.er 

21 may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or othe1wise changed except by a writing 

22 BXecutBd by an anthorl:zecl representative of each of the parties. 

23 13. In conskforation of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that 

24 the Board. may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter tlIB following Order: 

2.5 Ill 

26 Ill 

27 Ill 

28 Ill 
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1 ORPER 

2 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Vocationa!Nuise License No. VN 216516, issued to 

3 Respondent Raffiel Arvon Norwood, is summdered and accepted by the Board of Vocational 

4 Nursing a.lld Psychiatric Technicians. 

5 1. The surrendet' of Respondent's Vocational N11rse License and the acceptance of the 

6 . st~·t·enrlered license by the Boa1'd shall constitute the inipositlon of discipline against ;Respondent. 

7 This stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall become a part of Respondent's 

8 license history with the Board of Vocational Nursing and P.sych!atric ·Technioians. 

9 2. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a Licensed Vocational Nurse in 

IO California as of the effuctive date oftlw Board's Decision and Order .. 

11 3, Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Bo11rd his pocket license and, if one was 

12 issued, his wall certificate 011 or before the effective date of the Decision and Ordei:. 
. . 

13 4. lfRe.spondent ever files a:n applioatio11 for licellSUl'e or a petition for reinstatement in 

14 the State of California, tile Board shall treat it 11.B a petition for 1·einstateinent. Respondent must 

15 comply with all the laws, regulations and procedures for reinstate111ent of a revoked license in 

16 effect at tho ti1110 \;he petitlou is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in 

17 Accusation No. VN-2014-4279 shall be 'deemed to be true, correct and adJ.nitted by Respondent 

18 when tlrn Boiird determines whether to grant or deny t1ie petition. 

19 5. Respondent shall pay the agency its costs of investigation and enforcement in the 

20 ammmt of $1,300, DO pdo1· to issuance of a new or reinstated license. 

21 6. lfRespondont should over apply or reapply for a new license or cettification, or 

22 petition for reinstatement of a license, by m1y other health care licensiltg agency i11 the State of 

23 California, all ofthe charges and allegations contained in Accusation, No. VN-2014-4279 shall be 

24 deemed to be true, c01Tect, and admitted by Respondent for tl1e purpose of any Statement of 

25 Iss1ie.s or any other proceeding seeking to deny or res1rict licensure. 

26 7. Respomlent shall not apply for lic1msure or petition for rninstatoumut for t1n·ee (3) 

27 years fi·om the effective date of the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians' 

28 Decision and Order, 

4 
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1 ACCEPTANCE 

2 I have carefully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and 01~ler, I undel'stand the 

3 stipulation and the effect it will have on my Vooatioi1al Nurse License. I enter into this 

4 Stipulated Surrender of License and Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree 1:9 

5. be boimd by the Decision and Order of the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric 

6 Technicians. 

7 

8 DATED: 

9. 

10 
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RAFEIEL ARVON NORWOOD 
Respondent 

5 
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1 ENDORSEMENT 

2 The foregoing Stipulated SurreuderofLicens.e and Ordel' is hereby respectfully submitted · 

3 for consideration by the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians of the 

4 Department of Consumer Affairs. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Dated: 
o-:r{ t '-t I viu1 Cu 

14 LA2016500241 
12320030.doc 
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Respec\folly submitted, 

KAMALA D. HARRiS 
Attorney General of Califomia 
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

ELYSE M. DAVIDSON 
Deputy Attomey General 
Artomeysfor Complainant 

Stipulated Su1Tender of License (Case No. VN-2014-427.9) 
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KAMALA D, HARRIS 
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Attorney General of Gallfomla 
2 · LINDA K. SCHNE!Dm\ · 

S~mlor,Aaa!atant Attorney General 
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO 
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Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
StateBnrNo. 225325 · · . 

300 So, Spl'lng'Street, Siilte 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 · 
Telephone: (213) 897·2542 
Fa01Jlntlle~ (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for. Co1J1platncmt 
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8 BEFORE Tim 
.BOARD OF VOCATIONAL NURSING AND PSYCBlATRIC TECB:NICIANS 

9 DEPAR'l'MENTOFCONSUMERAJ.i'll'A.IRS. 
STATll: OF CMIFORNIA 

10 11~-----------~---, 
11 

12 

13 

Jn the Matter of the Aoousat.ion Agllinst:' 

RAFFIJl:L ARVON NORWOOD 
3633 Banyon Cci11rt 
Rosamond, CA 93560 

14 Vocntionnl Nurse LlcenH No. VN 216516 

· 15 'Responclont: 

16 

17 Complain!l1lt alleges: 

Case No. VN-2014-4279 

ACCUSATION 

18 PARTIES 

19 1. Kameka nrowu, PJ1D,, MBA, NP (Complainant) brings this Accusation sofoly in hoi: 

20 official capacity as the E){ecutlve O.ffioe1· of the Board of Vocational Nursing and l'ayohiatrlo 

21 Teohnicums, Department ofConsumor Affah's .. · 

22 · 2_. On or about A11gust 25; 2005, the Bot11'd of Vocatlonai ·Nul's!11g and Psychiatric 

· 23 Technicil\11s lssued Vocntlonrtl Nurse Lio~nsa Nu1i1ber VN 216516 tciH.affiel Arvon Nwwood 

24: (Respondent). The VocaUonal N11rs1i Lloe11se was in full force and effect at all times relevant to 

·25 the clmrp;es broug·ht he1•ein and will expire on Maroh 31, 2017,.unless renewed. 

26 ,JURIS:OICTION 

27 3, This Accusation is.brought befol'e the. Bo;ud of.Voomionnl Nursing tmd Psychiatric 

· 28 Teolmiclans (Board), Oopartment of Conaumer Affairs, under the authol'ity of the following laws. 

1 
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l ... 

.. 

" 

J . All seotlon refel'enoes are to the Business and Profos~ions Code (Code) u11less otherwise 

2 Indicated. 

3 ·4, Section 2875 of th? Code provides, ln pertinent pa1·t, that.the Bo111xl may discipline 

4 the holder of a vooatlonnl nurse Hoense fol• any reason provided In ~1tlclc 3· (commencing with 

5 seotiott 2875) of-the .Yooationul Nursing Pra9tioe Act. 

6 S. Sectlon 118, subdivision (b) of.the Code provides, k1 pertinent pai·t, that the 

7 · expiration of a license shall not deprive the Board j1u•lsdiotlon to proceed with a disciplinary 

8 actlo~ during the pe1'iod within which the Iloense.may be renewed, resto:od, !'~issued 01: 

9 rnh18tated. Under sectlon 2892.1 of the Code, tb<l Board may remiw an o.xpired license at filly 

Jo time within four yeai:s after the e11plrnti~J\, 

11 ST,ATUTORY PROVISIONS · 

12 6. Section 482 of the Code states: 

13 . 

14 

15 

16: 

17 

Eaoli board ~ndertbe provisions of this code shaH dev.elop criteria tq evMuiite 
thti rehabUlt11tlon of a per~on when; . · .- . . 

(a) Considering the denial .of a license by the boa.rd mtder Section 480; or 

(b) Considering suS]Jension or·rovocation of n )lcense under Section 490, 

. .Each· bom·d shall talmit\to ucoount all c01np(,ltent-0vldonce ofrehabllitation 
ft1rnish?d by tho aJipllcant or lioenseo, · . . · . 

18 . 7. Section 490 oftlie Code provi,dos, in pettlnellt part, that' the )3pard may SUM]lOlld or 

19·' revol(()·a ii~ense.when it finds that the licensee has been convicted ofa crlme substantially related 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2~ 

25 

26 

27: 

28 

,., 

to Uw qim!iflcations, fiinotions or duties of a lloonsed vocational nurse. 

8, 'section 493 of tho Code stat1>11:' 

Notwithsta11db1g any oth~1· JJNVislon of Jaw, in a proceeding 0011ducted by a board 
l'!ithin·the deparbnont pursmmt lo law to deny an appllcatlon for a lio9ns~ or to suspend · 
Ol' revoke a hoense or otherwl.~e take disciplina1·y action agafost a person who holds n · 
ilcense, upon the ground thfit.the applicant or the licensee has'boon convicted ofaodme 
substantially !'elated to tho· quahficutiqns,. :l\mctlons, and di1tles of the lioenaee In 
qutistlon, the record of con\.lotion of'the clime shall be conclusive evidence of1,hi; foot 

· that the conviction oooq1Ted,'but only of that fact, and tl1e li<'iard may inquire into the. 
ciroumstanco's sur1•otindin~ tho commission of the orimo In order'to fix the d~gree of 
discip,Une or to determine 1f the conviction is substm1tl11lly related to the qualifloations, 
functlo11.s, and duties of the. licensee In question. · · 

. . 
. As used iffthls section, "license'' inoludos "certificate," "permit," "authority," and 

"regls.tration." · 

2 
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1 9. , Section 2878 of the Code st~tes: 

2 

3 

.4' 

s 
'6' 

7' 

.8 

9 

10 

, '.!'he Board may su~pend 01· revoke' a lioense Issued undor this chapter [tho 
Vooatlonal N\Jl'~lng Pi:aotloe Act (Bus. & Prof; Code,, 2840, et seq,)] for any of the. 
fol!owlns: 

(a): Unpio.fessional oontlilct, which.lµcludes, but Is not limit'lld to, lhe'following: 
-. 

, (f). Conviction of a orime substantially relatedto the qualifications, functions, imd 
duties of a, lioensed YPoatfonal nurse, iii which ovent tile record ofti1e conviction shall bo 
9onclusiv0 ~vldenoe of the conviction. " . 

''.' 

· · (!~) Tl;e oommission of any act pu11ishable M a sexually 'related crime, If that 
act ls substantially related to tl1e dudes and functions of tho licensee. , , . , 

11 10. Section 28 78 .6 of th<i Code sMes: 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16' 

17 

' 18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

z3, 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

· A ple11 01· verdict of guilty. 01· a conviction folJowing 11 plea of nolo co11tendero 
mado to 11 charge st1bstantially relllted to the qualification8, l:\mctlons Wid dutles of a 
licensed vocational nurse Is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this article. 
The boiird may ordet· the license amipended. or rev9ked, or ,may decline to issiie a 
license, when the ,tlme·for appeal has elapsed, 01· the judgment of conviction has been 
affirmed Oll appeal Ol' When im order granting pl'Obation is mad(l suspending tho 
iniposltiOn of sentence; lrrespeotive of a subseq\lent order undcktheprovisions ofS.ection 
1203.4 ofthp Penal Code ·ajlowing suoh person to y;Hhd1·aw his pica of (llli!Ly and to 

· 1niter a _plc:ia of not guilty., 01: setting aside tho verdict' of guJlty, or dismissing thc;i 
aoousat10n, lnformatfon or mdioimont. . . . 

llliGuLATORY PROVISIONS, . . . 
11. Cnllfoinla Code ofRegulatlol1s, title 16, seotion 2521, states; 

Fo1· the purposes of denial, <11.1sp"'nsio11, .01• 1·evoc11tfon of a lloe11se pul'suant to 
Division 1.5 (commencing with S~ction 475) of the Business, nnd Prnfessions Code, a 
etime or act sfuill be 0011Bidered 'to. be substantially rolat~d to the qql\ll:ffoations, functions 

: or duties of a licensed voo11tlo111ll nurse ifto a substantfol dogr•ec:> it evidences prosont 01· 
potentll\l unfitness ofo licensed vocatiomifonrse to perform the i'unctiona authorized by 
h!a license fn a mntmcr consistent with tho public health, safoty, or welfare. Su oh crhnos 
or acts shall include but not he limited to those, involvi!lg the following: . 

~ . 
(a) P'rocuring a license.by fraud, misrepresentation, or mistake. 

· · (b) A co11victi.on ofp1·aqtiolng medicine without a llcens~ in vlolation of Chapter 5 
of Division 2 of the B11slness and Professions Code. . , · . . ' ' " 

(c) Violating pr attemp1lng to violnte, dfrectly or Indirectly, or assisting in or 
abe~i!1g 111c violation of, or wnspJring,to vloll\to iniy prqvlsip)1 or term o£'Chapter 6.5, 
Dlvmon 2 ofti1e Business antl Profesmons Code. , . 

3 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

·6 

·7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1~ 

13 . 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

zz 
23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

I 

(d) Aidlng or Mnlstlng, .01· agr~elng to aid or.assista11y.pe1·so1101·porsone, wheeher 
a. licensed physician .or not, in the p~rforma11ce of or ar1·wglng for a vmlatio11 of any'of 
the pI'oVisioiis of R..rtiole 13, CliapW 5,.Dlvlslon 2 oftl\<i Business and Professlo11s Co(le. 

(6) C<invlotlon of a odme involving fiso11l dishonesty. 

(f) Any crime ~1· act Involving the sale; gift, adminlstrn:tion; or ftlmlshing of 
"na1'Qotics 01· dangerous dt·ugs·or dahgei·ous devices" as defined in Section 4022 of the 
B11slness and Professions Code, . . . . . · · . . · 

12. Caiifomla Cod~ ~fReg\i.iat!ons, title 16; ~eotion 2522 statesl 

. When considering a) the donial oh license unCler Seoilon 480 of the Bt\si11ess and 
Professions Code, b) the suspenelon 01· revocation of a license on the ground thafa 
Uoensee has bQen convicted .of(;) cdme, or c) a petition for 1·einstatement of a Jice11ae . · 
under Sectlo112787 .'7- of the Business and Professions Code, the Board in eval11atlng the 
1•ohabilimtio11 of an Individual ·and his or her present eligibility for a lloense, will considei• 
the· following criteria: · . · · 

(I) Nature atid sevedLy of the act(s), offonsi;(s); 01· 1w!me(s) unde1· oonaideration. 

(2) Aotual or potential harm to fue public. 

(3) Aetual or po\ential Iim:m to any patleni. 

. (4) Overall dlsciplinal'y reoo1·d .. 

(5) Qvetall crimin,al actions. taken by any federal, state or looul o.genoy or oourt. 

(6) Pl'lor W!\fl!ings on re?O!'d Ot' prior resµet.l\ation. 

, (7) Number and/or vadrity of our!'ent violations. 

(8) Miligatlon evidenoe. 

(9)- In oas~ of a criminal oonviotlon, oompllance with terms of sentence ·and/or 
co mt-ordered, probation. · · · · » · · · · · . . . 

(\0) 'l'hne passed· sit,09 tho ~ot(s) or o.ffense(s) occuh·od. 

: (11) If applfotible, eviden~e of proc~eaings to dismiss a 6onvioti~n pui:si.umi .to 
Penal Code section 1203.4. · . 

(12) Co~peraiio1~ ~ifl1 the Boa1·d and otherlaw enforcement onegulatoiy agencies, 

(13) Other I;ehabilltatlon evide11oe: 

COS'l'S 

13. Se~tlon 1.25.3 of the Cod~ provides, in perLinent p11tt, that the Board may rnquost the 

administrative law judge to dll'ect n licentiate found to have .umrunitted a violation or violations 0f 

2°8 · t~ll licensing aot to pay a .suni not to exooed the reasonabl~ coHtB ofti1e investigation and 

4 
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2 
,'• 

' 3 

·4 

5 

6 

7 

·8 

9· 

10 

. 11 

12 

13 . 

14 

15 

16 . 

17 

18 
' . 

. 19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

48 

enfornement of the Cllse, with fai.lul'e of the llcentlate to comply subjecting the J,lcense to 11ot 

. pelng re11ewed 01· reinstated, If a case setUes, recoY,ery of itW~stigatlon and enforcen1ent ~osts 

may be lt1oluqed in a stipulated settlement, 

fIRSX Ct}Ufil!} 11'0\l DISCI~J,,INE 

'(Octobe1• 23, 2009'Crlmbml Coiivietio11 for Possessio11'·0£M~forial 

Involving !lie S0:u1nf Exploltatiou' of Minors). 

14. Respondent hns subjected his Jlceniie·to disciplinary actl~n. l.ln.der sections 490 ·and 

2878, subdlvislon .(f) of th~ C,oile In that he v,;as convicted of 11. .crime .that is &l.lb$~antially .related 
' . . . . . 

to the qualifioatiol\B; ftJnctions, .and d.uties of a licensed vooationnl nurse. The oircl.lmstance~ 1\rC 

as follows: 

a. On on1bout October 23, 2009, ln a ?riminal pl'Oceedlng entitled Untied . 
. . 

States a,f America v. 11.qf/lel Arvon Norwood, in Unlfoq States rnstrlot Court, E~stern District of 

Califol'n.ia, case number 1 :09·CR· 00169 A Wi, Respondent enwred a plea of guilty to Count 2 of 

a two·om111t'lndiotment, pcisseasion of material fo.volvlng the sexual txploltatio11 of.mimirs, ·iii 

violation (,)fTitle )8, United Stat.es Code, section 2252(a)(4), a felony. In e>:ch~ge for the plea, 

tho court dismissed Cownt l of the lnd.ictment, receipt or dlstribtitfon of matel'ial involving U1e . ' 

,•exual oxploitation ofmh1oi•s (18 u:s.C, § 2252(a)(2)). 

b. . As a result of the oonvlctlon, 011 Jmrnary 4, 2010, Respondent was 

committed to tlie 01.!stody of the United States Bureau of Prisons for a total term of 63 months . 

. U1;on refo~se from hnprisonme1it, ilespond~nt wt'is orc\ei:cd to supervised rnfoase for a term of 180 
. . 

months 011 standard conditions, and ~jJcc!al conclltiona that u\~Jucle, but m·e ii:ot limited to, a 

reyquii'en1ont to.participate in a progmm of outpatient mental health treatll1en1, submit' to a Fou1'1:h . . . 
Amondmerit waiver, and not possess i:n: i;se any 'computer or any device that has aoc~ss to iiny 

"on;line computer service" unless approved hy. his probation officer." Respondent was pr~hiblted . . . . . 

from any ooniact with oliilil1•(m unde1· the ·~ge of 18 u~foss approved by U10 'p~·oba!lon officer 111 

advance, and he ·is 'pi·ohlbitecl fl:orii loitering within WO foef ot' son~ol 0yards, parlci, pl~yground~. 

arc.ades; or other plaoes primarily used by childre11m1de1· the age of l 8. Responclent fa prohibited 

from enguglng !11 any oooupatioii, either pilld ot' ".olunteer, whlch exposes him directly or 

5 ·---· . 
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. , 

I 

·' 

I 
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1 indirectly with.child1'tln ubdet th~ iige of18,_ Respond~nt is subject to pel'lodio unan11ou11ced . 

2 extllllinations of 11ny computer, computeM'elated dovloe, or equipment that has an internal or 

3 external modem which l~ ln_the possession or 001itfol ofRespondeµt, Respondent was.reqnh·ed to 

.4 oons~11t to the II;1stii.llatlon of hal'dware or ·software systems his oomputer, oomputer-relat~d 
' 

. 5 devloes, and equipment, to monitor its usi;, Responclent agreed to third-party disolosurn to any 

.6 · emp
0

loye1· or potential e!Il:p!oyor ofth1;> co~puteM\llated 1·estrlctions, Resp.ondent is prohibited 

7 from pos,sessing, owning, using, viewing,, reading, <;>r ftequo11ting places with material depicting . 

·s and/or c\esptlblng ~exuaily expllolt ponduot, lnoluding computer Images, pictures, photogmphs, 

9 boolrn, writings, drawings, videos, 01· vld~ g~moo, ·Respondent must attend, coopernte with,, and 

1 O actively Jll\l'tioipate ill a sex offender.treatment and the1·apy ~rog1·11m ~approved and dll'eoted by 

J l his probation office; ancl as recommended by the-assigned tteatment provkl~r. Respondent's 

12 

13 

14 

Nsldel'!Qe must bo pre-approved by his probation ·office1•; he Is prohibited from residing in direct . . . ' 

view of places such a~ school y~<.js', 1~arks, public s~!mmlng pools, oi 1·eo1·ilatl6n~l oentern, .. 
playg1·ounds, youth centers, video ~roade facilities, 01· other places pl'lmadly used by ohlldrBn 

15 · undm· the age of 18, Reaponde111 wits requlrod to reglsto1· as ·a Box offcndo1· in the Jurlsdi~tioJ:l 

16 .. where he resides, where h.e is an pmploye9, and where he la a student • 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

o. . Tho fhots ih~t led.to theoonvlction are that oii or about April 1s; 2P09: ii1 

J(orn Councy",. R~~pondent knowingly possessed matters tliat had beeri mailed, shipped, 01; 

transported Ju interstate or foreign com;nerce, that contained visual depictions of a minor 

engagitig In soxually expHCit C<)nduct. Speolflcally,.Respondent poss~ssed on an i~ternal hard 

disc «il'i~~-·~f a ·computor,' one or more oompa~t discs, and a thumb 'drive, of at least one. mi°age file 
' - . ' ' ~ ' ' ' : . ' . 

that contained a vfoual de,pictl.on 1i minor engaged in sexually. explicit condiict. 

. §ECOND.CAUSEFOJlDISCIPL!Nm 
5 • •• 

(Commission of A11y Act Pm:iisbable·as·a Sexually-l~el~ted Crime) . . 
15, Respondent iB subjeot to disclplina1-y action undox section 2878, subdlvlsfon (k) in 

that he committed acts that are (and ·were) pmilshabl~ as sex~ially-related crimes in that he 

knowingJyposse~sed linage files that depicted minors engaging in sexually explicit ConcJuot, and • . . 

was convicted of possessing mtttcdaf Involving the sexnnl exploitation of' mlnol's. 

---·~·-------- ----· 
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l PRAYER 

2 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hool'ing be held on the matte1·s herein 11lli>ged, . . . ' 

3 and that fo!lowing the hea.l'ing, the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psyohl~trio Teohnlclans 
. '• 

4 Issue a .deolsloni 

5 l. R~voldng or suspending Vocational Nuts~ License· Number VN 216516, issued to . . ' ' ' 

6 Raffle! Arvon Norwood; 

7 . 2, . O!'doring R.affiel Arvon N01w1)od to pay the Board ot'Vooational Nursing and . . . . . 

8 Psychlatdo Technlolims the reasonable QOStll of the lnv®tigation and enforooment of this case, 

. 9 pUl'simnt to Busiiioss and l?rofes~ions Code seotlon 125.3; . 

l Q 3, Taking such other and further aotlon as deemed l)ecess1l!'y and p1·oper, 

11 ' 

12 

13 

14 

15. 

16 
· J,A201650024I. 

17 8128'131 I.doo 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2Z 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

~3 
KAMEl<A BROWN, PHD.,.Ml3A, NP 
Exocntlv.e Officer 
Boat•d ofV.ocatlonal Nursing and Psy.chiatrlc Technlchms 
Depm•IJnent of Consumet' Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant . 
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